MARYLAND HISTORICAL TRUST ADDENDUM SHEET Property Name: Clifton
Montgomery-Prince George’s Short-term Congestion Relief Survey No.: M:15-41

Property Address_ 17107 New Hampshire Avenue, Ashton vicinity, Montgomery County
Owner Name/Address_Elizabeth B. Bullard / 17107 New Hampshire Avenue, Ashton, MD 20861
Year Built_1742

Description:

Cliton was previously surveyed by the Maryland-National Capital Park and Planning Commission (M-NCPPC) in January 1973
and by the Maryland Historical Trust in September 1973. The property was listed on the National Register of Historic Places
in July 1974. Since the prior survey, two sympathetic additions have been made to the rear elevation of the north section.
A wood-frame shed roof addition which extends the original roof slope, extends along the entire length of the rear elevation.
The addition has a brick veneer foundation, wood clapboard siding and a wood shingle roof. A cut-away porch is located
at the southeast corner supported by a wood post. Within the porch is a vinyl sliding glass door and wood panel door. The
east elevation of the wood-frame addition has a vinyl sliding glass door, while the north elevation has a wood 6/6 double-hung
window. Attached to the east elevation of the wood-frame addition is a second addition. The 1-story addition has a gable
roof, covered with wood shingles, and has a stuccoed exterior. Wood panel doors are located on the north and south
elevations of the addition, while the east elevation has two 4-light casement windows.

Outbuildings on the property include a wood-frame shed and a guest house/cottage. The shed, located east of the house,
has a stone foundation and wood board and batten siding. The roof is wood shingle on the west elevation and standing-
seam metal on the east elevation. A wood board and batten door is located on the north elevation, while the south elevation
has a 9-light wood casement window. The guest house/cottage is located east of the house and shed. Constrcuted circa
1930, the 1'%-story wood-frame building is supported by brick piers, has wood board and batten siding and a standing seam
metal front-gable roof. The front, or west elevation has a 1-story hipped roof porch with exposed rafter ends and is supported
by four wood posts. Within the porch are double wood doors. Both the north and south elevations have four 9-light wood
casement windows.

Verbal Boundary Description and Justification:

The National Register boundary established for Clifton in 1974 included a large tract of land of unknown size,partially
bounded by the intersection of New Hamspire Avenue and Ednor Road. The corner points of the boundary were set by
latitude and longitude. Much of the land comprising this boundary includes property which had been subdivided and
developed for residential use between 1960 and 1962. It is recommeded that the current tax parcel, which includes the
house, shed, guest house, pool, and the historic access lane from New Hampshire Avenue, be established as the National
Register boundary of Clifton. The current tax parcel (Tax Map HT561/Parcel P337) is 1.87 hectares (4.64 acres) in size.
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Property Address_17107 New Hampshire Avenue, Ashton vicinity, Montgomery County
Owner Name/Address_Elizabeth B. Bullard / 17107 New Hampshire Avenue, Ashton, MD 20861
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S {Rev. 6-72) NATIONAL PARK SERVICE | Mwryland
4 4
Lo jcouNTY-
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(Type all entries - complete applicable sections) ]

oy C OMMON - i
;o Clifton ’:
L - AND/OR HISTORIC:

i Clifton
: {2. LOCATION
STREET ANO NUMBER:
N 17107 New Hampshire Avenue, and Colesville Road :
s 7Y oR TowWn: CONGRESSIONAL OISTRICT. T
; . i
Ednor Eighth
STATE CODE COUNTY: CCx—’jf_ﬂ'
Maryland 24 Montgomery i
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[7- DESCRIPTION X s
(Check One)
[0 Excellem [Z Good [] Fair [C] Deteriorated ] Ruins [} Unexposed
CONDITION (Check One) (Check One)
[@ Alrered [y Unaltered ] Moved [ Original Site

“TICRIBE THE PRESENTY AND ORIGINAL (If known) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

"lifton is located on the east side of Colesville Road, Marvland Route
85., Just north of the intersection of Ednor Road, Cedar Lane and Colesvilic
Road, and south of the intersection of Maryland Route 108 and Colesville
Road at Ashton, Maryland.

Clifton ie a one and a half story gambrel-roofed brick structure with
a lower north wing, also with gambrel roof. The main part of the house has
four bays, with the entrance in the second bay from the south end. Therc
are segmental brick resiraining arches over each of the first floor openings;
the windows in the main (west) facade are wine over nine with the frames
flush with the outer wall plane. The brick is laid up in Flemish bond with
glazed headers. Three dormer windows have six over six lights; their shed
roofs are ecarried forward at the same pitch as that of the higher part of
the gambrel roof.

The north and south ends have massive internal brick chimmeys. On the
south end, there are small windows on etther side of the stack and a small
window at the second floor level on the east end. On the first floor of
this end, a funeral door is at the west side and a window, swrrounded by a
framed section, at the east eide; the framed insert suggest a possible ex-
tenston of the house southerly or another door at some past time. The north
end has windows on either eide of the stack in the attic and one at the west
end on the second floor; at the ground floor level, there is a window in tho
west end and a door with an exposed wooden lintel (now opening into the north
wing) on the east end. At the level of the boxed cornice, a three-brick tall
corbel covers the end of the cornice; the present cornice and mouldings are
reconstructed. The end chimmeys also show signs of reconstruction above (he
second floor level.

The faz;;zdation ig soapstone with two courses of brick, thicker than the
walls above, laid atop it. The brick courses serve as an wwnoulded water
table.

The window and door frames have heavy gille and a bead around the in-
_terior edge of the framing.

The interior has been restored with some changes. The northwest room
has a corner cupboard and panelled mantlepiece. In the northeast room, the
mantle is a simple board and the arch of the fireplace is exposed within thc
panel surround! The southeast room has a plastered fireplace. In the souih-
east and northeast rooms, the windows are larger than in the west rooms. All
rooms have a chair ratl. The doors are all four-panel, with the panels pyo-
Jeeting beyond the surrounding stiles. BDaschoards have a bead aleng Hhe
upper edge. Walls are plastered directly on ilhe brick. Yhe rouof ic menlorn,
with no ridgepole, common rafters, and milled sheathing boards.

The addition to the north has a boxed staircase with veriical beaded
boarding in the northeast corner. The beams (now exposed) are hand hewnm.
The windows are six over six with smaller mullions than in the windows of

the south part of the house. A fireplace in the south wall chavcs Che noyilh

chimmey of the main house block. A stairease with Lhree rviscrs cowicels L |
~aqddition with the main house block. — e
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¢ il [E- SiGNIFICANCE
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. SPECIFIC DATE(S) (If Applicable and Known) qgfter 1742
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Architecture [C] Secial/Humon-
[0 Commerce [ Lirercture itarion
[0 Coemmunications ] Milirary [C] Theater
O Cmuuvuliol‘l' [ Music [C1 Transportation

FT&?N“T OF SIGNIFICANCE

Clifton is one of the few extant mid-eighteenth centwry buildings in
Montgomery County. The date is important because at the time the county wac
part of the frontier as was the surrounding piedmont. The structure has sur+
vived in an excellent state of preservation retaining the majority of the
original fabriec.

From the viewpoint of architectural history the brick gambrel roof
structure arouses great interest. The form, especially the roof construc-
tion, 18 not typical of this region, but rather of southern Maryland or the
Eastern Shore. The explanation lies in the fact that the builder's family
was from southern Anne Arundel County where brick gambrel roof houses wecrr
commonly constructed in the first half of the century, e.g., Larkin'e Hill
Faym.

Clifton also has significance in relation to local history for it is
assoctated with the first settlement of the area. The firet settler, Jawmcs
Brooke, arrived in the first quarter of the century. His wife's sicter wm:iu
husbm:d James Thomas, arrived shortly thereafter The Broole ani Tt r.
fmn.l‘z.es formed the nucleus of a Quaker community which by 1753 had been
organized into the Sandy Spring Meeting of Friends. Clifton is contemporary
with the origins of the meeting itse association has significance because ‘ho
meeting house was not constructed until 1819.

The history of Clifton begine with another pmminent Quaker, Richard
Snowden (d. 1763). Snowden owned vast tracts of land in Anne Avundel, Princi
George's and Montgomery counties and operated the Patuzent Iron Works, a
major eighteenth century Maryland industry. One of the first tracts
Snowden acquired was Snowden's Manor -- one thousand acres for which he re-
ceived a patent in 1715. In the 1740's he sold part of it to Philip Thomas,
the founder of the Quaker family. Thomas was Snowden's daughter's fatho»-
in-law. Two decades later Philip Thomas sold the tract to Johm Thomas a:
his ". . . indefeazable [sic] estate of inheritance. . . Together with all
Houses, Edifices, Buildings, Pastures Gardens Commons Rents Servieea Frmo!lii-
ments Cultivations and Improvements. . ." Thie last phrase couplod wili

the architectural assessment indicates that the building datec from cireu
1760.

Since John Thomas had no children he willed the house and farm to hic
great nephew William John Thomas whose presence at Clifton is indicated i
(SEE CONTINUATION SHEET)
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MAJOR BIBLIOGRAPHICAL REFERENCES

PRIMARY SOURCES, Hall of Records, Annapolis, tiaryland

P

t2C Debt Books. (Frederick County).

iy

i Hopkins, G.M. Atlas of Fifteen Miles Around Washington 1878 Ineiud- o the |
CA County of Prince George (sic) Maryland. Philadelphia: G.M. Hopkms, 1678

g

Martenet, Simon, J. Martenet and Bond's Map of Montgomery Countu, rMariiland
Ealtimore: Simon J. Martenet, 1865. '

i : (SEE _CQUTINUATION SHEET)
{10, GEOGRAPHICAL DATA -
. . LATITUDE AND LONGITUDE COORDINATES LATITUDE AND LONGIT'JDE COORDINATES
, DEFINING A RECTANGLE LOCATING THE PrROsERTY | O DEFINING THe CENTER POINT OF A F<OPERTY
) _OF LESS THAN TEN ACRES
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o . » (-] ] L]
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° 20 _acres _ _ )
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[11. FORM PREPARED BY

NAME AND TITLE:

Christopher Owens, Park Historian

DATE

ORGANIZATION Maryland Nattonal Capital Park and Planning

Commission Jaiuary 1973

STREET AND NUMBER:

8787 Georgia Avenue

CITY OR TOWN: STATE CODE

Silver Spring

Maryland (SEE CONTINUATION SHERTIOS

pz. STATE LIAISON OFFICER CERTIFICATION NATIONAL REGISTER VERIFICATION

As the designated State Liaison Officer for the Na-
tional Historic Preservation Act of 1966 (Public Law
890-665), 1 hereby nominate this propetty for inclusion

I hereby certify that this property is included in the

National Register.

in the National Register and certify that it has been
evaluated according {6 the c-iteria and procedures set

The recommended

forth by the National Park Service.
level of significance of this nomination is:

Director, Office of Archeology and Historic Preservation

National (] State [} Local. (7}
Cate
Name ATTEST:
Title
; Keeper of The National Register
Date Date e o
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IATIONAL PARK SERVICE Maryland
NATIONAL REGISTER OF HISTORIC PLACES ST
Montgomery
PROPERTY PHOTOGRAPH FORM FOR NPS USE ONLY
(Type all entries - attach to or enclose with photograph) it ol s i
Clifton
AND/OR MISTORIC: Clifton
[2. LOCATION . R i, & e

[sTREET AnND NUMBER:

17107 New Hampshire Avenue, & Colesville Road
CITY OR TOWN:

Ednor

ITATE: CODE [COUNTY: CODE

Maryland 24 Montgomery 031

, PHOTO REFERENCE - . , AT e
PHOTO CREDIT: Michael Bourne
oaTE OF PHOTO: June 1968
hecaTive FiLep AT:  Maryland Historical Trust
) 94 College Avenue, Annapolis, Maryland 21401
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(Number ell entries)

CLIFTON
#8. SIGNIFICANCE continued:
a 1865 map of Montgomery County and on a plat (1849) delineating the edgco

farm became the property of his son John Thomas who was the first to cu::
property Clifton. The last Thomas to occupy the house was his son,

[S1@4
cem s .
3

#9. MAJOR BIBLIOGRAPHICAL REFERENCES continued:
Montgomery County Land and Probate Records.
Patent Records.

Plat of William Thomas' Land. 1849. Montgomery County Records. Liber PH
facing folio 241.

Provincial Court Deeds.

SECONDARY SOURCES

Judd and Detweiler, 1952.

more: Regional Publishing, 1968.

3

Spencer, Richard Henry. Genealogtcal and Memorial Encyclovedic o
of Maryland... & vols. New York: American Historical Socicty, 101..

Stables, Ester B. '"Sandy Spring and the Friends Meeting From It

)

It F
to 1853." The Montgomery County Story. Vol. II. (May 18L8), 1
#11. FORM PREPARED BY continued

HNancy A. Milley, Historian

Maryland Historical Trust September 1873
2525 Riva Road

Annapolis, Maryland 21401

Is. J. Martenet, Martenet and Bond's Map of Momtgomcry County, Harilawi,

facing folio 2412, Hall of Records, Annapolie, Maryland.

his father's estate.! After the death of William John Themas (d. 188<) i

-

John Thomas, who remained in the building through the mid-twentietn co:iav..

Farquhar, Roger Brooke. 0ld Homes and Historic Montgomery Counti. ool io.;:

Scharf, J. Thomas. History of Westernm Maryland...2 volumes. FHeprinz. ia.

Baltimore: Simon J. Martenet, 18€5 and Montgomery County Willo, Lilor @il ..
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ACHS SUMMARY FORM M:Is-4(

T, Name Clifton

2. Planning Area/Site Number 15/41 3. MNCPPC Atlas Reference Map 17
' F=-2
4. Address 17107 New Hampshire Avenue
Ashton, Maryland 20702
5. Classification Summary

Category__structure

Ownership_ private

Public Acquisition__ NA

Status__occupied

Accessible__yes: restricted

Present use__residential-private

Previous Survey Recording HABS, 19306 Federal__ State X County X_Local

(Title and date: National Register 1974 )
6. Date c. 1740 ‘ 7. Original Owner Philip Thomas

8. Apparent Condition

a. good ¢c. original site

b. unaltered

Description
Built circa 1740, with a wing added in 1846, this house was constructed o!

brick laid in the flemish bond pattern with glazed headers. The foundations
are of soapstone. There are five corner fireplaces in the original house and
one in the 1846 addition, pit sawn beams in original part and hand hewn beams
in the later part. The original windows in the front wall have nine over nine
. panes, the doors all have HL hand forged hinges and panelling in living room
are originzl, as is plaster, floors, many windows, most of the interior,

10. Significance

A very early Quaker house of the Sandy Spring community. The Thomas
family lived in it for six generations. The house 1s unique in that so much
has been preserved of its original state, including plaster, many windows
and glass, doors, floors, etc., and 1in some places the first or original

coat of paint.

-+. Date researched and researcher Christopher Owens, Nancy lMiller

1974
12. Compiler 13. Date Compiled 14, Designation
Wm., W. Canbyv. Oct. 1978 Approval

: = 15, Acreage : 20 acres
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MARYLAND HISTORICAL TRUST WORKSHEET

NOMINATION FQRM

for the
NATIONAL REGISTER OF HISTORIC PLACES, NATIONAL PARKS SERVICE

T R T —— —_— T
C OMMON:
AND/OR HISTORIC:
Clifton
{2, LOCATION
STREET ANC NUMBER:
17107 New Hampshire Avenue
CITY OR TOWN:
Ashton
STATE COUNTY:
Maryland Montgomery
{3. CLASSIFICATION ’ L
CATEGORY ACCESSIBLE
v
(Check Ong) OWNERSHIP ) STATUS TO THE PUBLIC
z
3 District ‘5 Building O Public Public Acquisition: dOccupied Yes:
o [} Site [ Structure Q/Privan 3 in Process (] Unoccupied {3 Restricted
- {J Object (] Both [J Being Considered B Preservation work D Unrestricted
in progress E No
O PRESENT USE (Check One or More as Appropriate)
b=/ O Agricultural {7 Government [ Pork O Transportation (3 Comments
o [[] Commercial O iIndustrial £} Privote Residence [ Other (Specity)
- {J Educational O Military {3 Religious
. {T] Entertainment O Museum [ Scientific
— 4. OWNER OF PROPERTY
— OWNER'S NAME:
James W. Bullard
lu STREET AND NUMBER:
w 17107 New Hampshire Avenue
vy CITYY OR TOWN: STATE:
‘_ ...__Ashton _ Maryland »
{5: LOCATION OF LEGAL DESCRIPTION . - s e
COURTHOUSE, REGISTRY OF DEEDS, ETC:
Montgomery County Courthouse
STREET AND NUMBER:
CITY OR TOWN: STATE
Rockville Maryland
_ITitle Reference of Current Deed (Book & Pg, #);
|8: REPRESENTATION IN EXISTING SURVEYS ' B L
TITLE OF SURVEY:
Historic American Buildings Survey
DATE OF SURVEY: [ 3(, Federal [ State {7 County 3 Local
DEPOSITORY FOR SURVEY RECORDS:
Library of Congress
STREET AND NUMBER:
East Capitol and lst Streets SE
CITY OR TOWN: STATE:
Washington, DC
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|7. DESCRIPTION

(Check One)
CONDITION [ Excellent E Good 1 Fair ] Deterioroted [J Ruins [ Unexposed
(Check One) (Check One)
EF Altered ] Unoltered {3 Moved 3 Original Site

DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (if known) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

The house is a one and a half story gambrel-roofed brick
structure with a lower north wing, also with gambrel roof. The
main part of the house has four bays, with the entrance in the
second bay from the south end. There are segmental brick re-
straining arches over each of the first floor openings; the
windows in the main (west) facade are 9/9 with the frames flush
with the outer wall plane. The brick is laid up in Flemish

bondwith glazed headers. Three dormer windows have 6/6 lights;

338

their flat roofs are "carried forward at the same pitch as that
of the higher part of the gambrel roof.

§-~ The north and south ends have massive internal brick chim-
neys. On the south end, there are small windows on either side
of the stack and a small window at the second floor level on
the east end. On the first floor of this end, a funeral door

is at the west side and a window, surrounded by a framed sec-

SNOI1LDO2NYLsSNI

tion, at the east side; the framed insert suggests a possible
extension of the house southerly or another door at some past
time. The north end has windows on either side of the stack in
the attic and one at the west end on the second floor; at the
ground floor level, there is a window in the west end and a
door with an exposed wooden lintel (now opening into the north
wing) on the east end. At the level of the boxed cornice, a
three-brick tall corbel covers the end of the cornice; the
present cornice and mouldings are reconstructed. The end

chimneys also show signs of reconstruction above the second

floor level. (continued on supplemental sheet)
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The foundation is soapstone with two courses of brick,
thicker than the walls above, laid atop it. The brick courses
serve as an unmoulded water table,

The window and door frames have heavy sills and a bead
around the interior edge of the framing.

The interior has been restored with some changes. The
northwest room has a corner cupboard and panelled mantlepiece.
In the northeast room, the mantle is a simple board and the
arch of:the,fireplace is exposed within the panel surround.

The southeast room has a plastered fireplage. 1In theksouth-
east and northeast rooms, the windows are larger than in the
west rooms. All rooms have a chair rail. The doors are all
four-panel with the center panel raised above the surrounding
mouldings. Baseboards have a bead along the upper edge. Walls
are plastered directly on the brick. The roof is modern, with
no ridgepole, common rafters, and milled sheathing boards.

fhe addition to the north has a boxed staircase with verti-
cal beaded boarding in the northeast corner. The beans (now
exposed) are hand hewn. The windows are 6/6 with smaller mullions’
than in the windows of the south par£ of the house. A fireplace
in the south wall shares the north chimney of the main house
block. A staircase with three risers connects the lower addition

with the main house block.
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STATEMENTY OF SIGNIFICANCE

Farquhar says Philip Thomas acquired the land, part of

Snowden's Manor Enlarged, in March, 1742, His grandson,
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- built Clifton.
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OTHER: The owners are restoring the house with some

assistance from Orin Bullock, AIR.
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10. GEOGRAPHICAL DATA :

LATITUDE AND LONGITUDE COORDINATES LATITUDE AND LONGITUDE COORDINATES

DEFINING A RECTANGLE LOCATING THE PROPERTY 0 DEFINING THE CENTER POINT OF A PROPERTY
R OF LESS THAN TEN ACRES
GORNER LATITUDE LONGITUDE LATITUDE LONGITUDE

Degrees Minutes Seconds | Degrees Minutes Seconds Degrees Minutes Seconds | Degrees Minutes Seconds
NW -] » » o ' » o . - o » »
NE -] . [ ] (- ’ -
SE - » » ‘ ° 3 -
SW -] . ] -] . »

APPROXIMATE ACREAGE OF NOMINATED PROPERTY: .

‘Acreage Justification: m

]

; m
—
=z
w
-

) o)

LIST ALL STATES AND COUNTIES FOR PROPERTIES OVERLAPPING STATE OR COUNTY BOUNDARIES c

STATE: COUNTY
0O
STATE: COUNTY: -
—
STATE: COUNTY: o
z
. NTY:
STATE COUNT w
11 FORM PREPARED BY (.
NAME AND TITLE:
Christopher Owens, Park Historian -
ORGANIZATION DATE
M-NCPPC 1/24/73

STREEY AND NUMBER:

8787 Georgia Avenue

« .
4N -
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Clifton

BRICK

JOHN THOMAS 1742

LLE motorist driving along the Colesville

I Road about one mile south of Ashton is

attracted to the Gambrel roof of (‘lifton,
a few hundred vards east of the pike. 1t was
built soon after 1742,

Hanging in the hall at Clifton is a treasured
deed, excented by Richard Snowden on March
10, 1742, conveying to Philip Thomas several
plots of land aggregating about 1,000 aeres.
The house was built by John Thomas, a brother
of Philip mentioned in the deed.

The old brick house, an antique gem, has
stood at the end of an avenue of stately maples,
in possession of six generations of the Thomas
family.

To get the background of the owners of Clif-
ton, it is necessary for us to include the Snow-
den family in our story. Progenitors of hoth
came from Wales at ahout the same time in the
seventeenth century to the area west of the
(hesapeake Bay. They, likewise, migrated to
what is now Montgomery Counily at about the
same time, in 1727-1728,

The elder Philip Thomas of Wales, first of

~~ this branch of the family to come to America,

¥ Giearge Fox's Journal,

was given 500 acres called Becket by the Lord
Proprietor of the Provinee in 1651. And Richard
Snowden, one of Cromwell’s officers, in 1686 re-
ceived a grant of 10,500 acres called Robin
Iood’s Forest. Both were in the West River
area of Maryland. Richard Snowden, however,
laid the foundations of the land fortunes of both
families when he obtained grants of Snowden’s
Manor in December, 1715, of 1,000 aerves and
Snowden’s Manor Enlarged in Mareh, 1743, of
9,265 acres. The deed rveferred to above from
Richard Snowden to Philip Thomas I1I was for
part of that land.

The elder Philip Thomas was a leader of the
Puritan Party, and when the cohorts of C'rom-
well were ousted from power in Marviand, he
was given the rave distinetion of being ap-
pointed in 1657 by the Lord Proprictor, along
with Richard Preston (The Great Quaker), to
arrange the articles of surrender.

Richard Preston, then President of The (fonn-
eil, lived at Charles Gift on the Patuxent River,
and during the Cromwell era, Preston’s ““great
hall”? was the meeting place of the Iouse of
Burgesses., Charles Gift, built in 1651, is next
to the oldest brick house standing in Maryland
(““Cross Manor’ is slightly older), and it is
an architectural gem of the highest type of the
Provincial period of architecture,

Later the elder Philip Thomas hecame a
Quaker, and it is intevesting to speculate
whether his ““convineement’ was due to the in-
fluence of the “* Great Quaker’’ Preston or to the
preaching of George Fox, the Founder of
Quakerism. Fox was at Charles Gift several
times, preached at several large meetings, and,
to quote his famous ‘‘ Journal’’: ““general meet-
ings, one which lasted four days—July, 1671—
to which many other people—divers of whom
were of considerable guality in world’s account
—five or six justices of peace, the Speaker of
their Assembly, one of their Council, and others
of note,’"?

Philip Thomas, the elder, had a grandson,
Jolhm whe married lizabeth Snowden, daughter
of the princely landowner. It is believed that
this Joln built Clifton. His son John married
Margaret Hopkins, and he lived at Clifton until
1826. Then in direct line, the owners were
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William, who married Martha Patrick; then
William John who married Rebecca Porter;
then John who married Catharine Vickers;
William John Thomas, married Edith Bentley.
The last named William John Thomas, died on
July 24th, 1957, and his widow IKdith B. lived
alone for a while in the ancient home. But when
it was =old to Mr. and Mrs. Wellens, she built a
modern home just oft Olney-Sandy Spring high-
way, for her old age. Both her sons are success-
fully employed elsewhere,

Mr. and Mrs. Wellens have two children, both
married—they are LaVerne, married to the
Reverend Samuel J. Mujais. of the First
Preshyterian Church of Jackson, Mich. The son
18, Theodore Raymond Wellens, Jr., married to
Nina Grotefend—a daughter of the Reverend
0. G. Grotefend of St. James Lutheran Church
in Washington, D.C.

One of the antique features is a so-called
“funeral door,”’ in the east wall of the front
hall. By tradition it was considered unlucky to
carry a corpse out the front door.

The original windows in the front wall have
18 panes each, with very heavy mullions. Some
of the doors are battened, and the main front
door has a heavy bar across the inside. Most ot
the floor beams and studding, are hand-hewn,
and the plaster of the inside of the house, is
directly on the brick.

The Thomases of Sandy Spring have always
been devoted and steadfast supporters of the
Sandy Spring Meeting, which is still active.
The brick Meeting House was built in 1817. Of
the forty-four contributors to the building fund
of $3,443, seven were named Thomas and they
contributed $1,203.

The charming ivy-covered brick house at
Chifton has always excited students of early
architecture. Ivy completely covered the left-
hand wing. It was so thick it had to be removed.

Family tradition that the bricks were made
in Fngland, scems supported by the consensus
of architects, scores of whom have studied the
walls. It is reported that the bricks were
brought to Tlk Ridge TLanding in ships which

M54

Historic MontcomeErYy Couxty, MaRYLAND

took cargoes of tobacco to the mother country.
The ‘‘Landing’ was a busy port in Colonial
days, but today it has disappeared for anyvthing
larger than rowboats. It is just eighteen miles
as a crow flies from Clifton. Tobacco hogs-
heads were ““rolled down the roads,”” but bricks
would have to be hauled through the wilderness,
probably by oxen as horses were few and the
going too rough for them. Or the hardy pio-
neers may have found a way to perform the
heavy task of hauling brick by using snow slides
pulled by oxen.

The red stretcher bricks of the Flemish bond
are irregular in shape, and the black headers
are just about square. This arrangement gives
a well-defined ‘‘checker-board’’ pattern. Black
headers are usually characteristic of English-
made brick. Foundations are of soapstone,
plentiful on the farm.

Through the front door one enters the main
hall, across the right or cast end of the house.
The main stair is winding. To the left of the
hall is the ‘“Big Room,’’ with corner cupboard,
panelled doors and window sills, There are
many old hinges, on various doors, of the “117,
“HL??, 1.7, and ““strap’’ types. To the left

“of the “Big Room” is a dining room which has

cight doors and one window. Behind this is a
hall, and to the east is a conservatory and sit-
ting room. Where these three rooms intersect
is a chimney, sixteen feet through, forming
three fireplaces.

‘1t takes a heap o’living to make a house a
home.”’ Clifton has heen conseerated by many
births, marriages and funerals. Tere has flour
ished a typical devout and substantial family
of Montgomery County.

“The old Thomas home was sold in 1960 to
Mr. and Mrs. Theo. R, Wellens, after two cen-
turies of ownership and occupaney by the one
family. Mr. and Mrs. Wellens are very happy
in the unique old house with so many memories,
and are determined to maintain its antique
characteristics, unspoiled except for the instal-
lation of modern comforts. Thev retain the front
driveway and 4 acres of land.”’

“For truth has such a face and such a mien,
Ax to be loved. need only to be seen.”

Jou~N DrypeNn. 1631-1701
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